
 

Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Erin Anton at 
(909) 797-5117, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the workshop packet are 
available for public inspection during normal business hours at the District office located at 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa.  Meeting 
material is also be available on the District’s website at www.yvwd.dst.ca.us 

 
 

Notice and Agenda of a Board Workshop 
Tuesday, November 10, 2015 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

MEETING LOCATION: District Administration Building 
 12770 Second Street, Yucaipa 

 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD: Director Ken Munoz, Division 1 
Director Bruce Granlund, Division 2 
Director Jay Bogh, Division 3 
Director Lonni Granlund, Division 4 
Director Tom Shalhoub, Division 5 

  

 

I. Call to Order 
II. Public Comments  At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Directors on matters within its 

jurisdiction; however, no action or significant discussion may take place on any item not on the meeting agenda.   
III. Staff Report 
IV. Presentations 

A. Overview of Proposed Plans to Expand the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Recycled Water 
System [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220 - Page 5 of 168] 

B. Overview of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending on June 30, 2015 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221 - Page 18 of 168] 

C. Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s Action Plan Related 
to the State Water Resources Control Board Mandatory Restrictions to Achieve a 36% 
Reduction in Potable Urban Water Use [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-222 - Page 77 of 
168] 

D. Discussion Regarding a Cooperative Partnership with Curiosity Quest to Create 
Informational Videos for Various District Programs [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-223 - 
Page 85 of 168] 

V. Capital Improvement Projects 
A. Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking Water Reservoir R-12.4 

- Calimesa [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-224 - Page 88 of 168] 
B. Status Report on the Installation of a 30” Drinking Water Pipeline and a 12” Drinking Water 

Pipeline in Second Street, Yucaipa [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-225 - Page 93 of 168] 



Yucaipa Valley Water District Board Workshop Page 2 
 
 

 

C. Status Report on the Installation of New Recycled Water Services and Recycled Water 
Pipelines Throughout the Service Area of the Yucaipa Valley Water District [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 15-226 - Page 99 of 168] 

D. Status Report on the Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement Project at the Wochholz 
Regional Water Recycling Facility [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-227 - Page 102 of 168] 

E. Status Report on the Construction of Drinking Water Replacement Pipelines in Date Street, 
Dodd Street, Panorama Drive, Lennox Street, Verona Street and Calvin Street [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 15-228 - Page 104 of 168] 

VI. Administrative Issues 
A. Review of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on October 31, 2015 

[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229 - Page 106 of 168] 
B. Discussion Regarding the Increased Implementation and Distribution of Weather-Based Wi-

Fi Irrigation Controllers for Residential Water Customers of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District [Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230 - Page 137 of 168] 

C. Discussion Regarding a Draft Surplus Recycled Water Exchange Agreement Between 
Yucaipa Valley Water District and Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District [Workshop 
Memorandum No. 15-231 - Page 146 of 168] 

D. Discussion Regarding a Draft Joint Use Agreement for the Nobel Creek Recharge Facility 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 15-232 - Page 156 of 168] 

VII. Director Comments 
VIII. Adjournment  



 

Staff Report 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 3 of 168



 

Presentations 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 4 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-220 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Overview of Proposed Plans to Expand the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District’s Recycled Water System 

 
On August 20, 2008, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 11-2008 establishing a 
strategic plan for the management, integration and preservation of water resources.  This Plan 
embodied the concepts of water resource management and the full integration of services offered 
by the Yucaipa Valley Water District.  A fundamental component of the District’s overall strategic 
plan is to increase the amount of recycled water used throughout the sphere of influence of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District.   
 

 
 
Recycled Water Quality 
 
Sewer treatment plants are required to provide a level of treatment to protect beneficial uses 
downstream of discharge points.  These requirements dictate that a sewer treatment plant located 
in Yucaipa, Calimesa or Beaumont discharge extremely high quality recycled water to protect 
downstream uses throughout the Santa Ana Watershed.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 5 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 2 of 13 

Over the past decade, the regulatory requirements have been significantly increased to require 
treatment processes that reduce minerals (salinity) and nitrogen.  This level of treatment requires 
equipment and purification processes that are similar to those found in drinking water filtration 
facilities.   
 
Recognizing that recycled water is a highly pure and reliable source of water, the Board of 
Directors approved the construction of several projects designed to maximize the use of recycled 
water throughout the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s sphere of influence.  These facilities are now 
largely completed. 
 
On June 11, 2013, the District staff provided an overview of our existing recycled water system 
and proposed recycled water pipelines to further expand the use of recycled water in the region 
[Workshop Memorandum No. 13-119].  The discussion focused primarily on the following five 
projects: 

 The Oak Glen Recycled Water System; 
 The Wilson Creek Groundwater Recharge Project; 
 The Crafton Hills Agricultural Preserve; 
 The Calimesa Recycled Water Conveyance Pipeline; and 
 The San Timoteo Agricultural Preserve. 

 

 
 
At the regular board meeting on December 3, 2014, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 
No. 2014-20 regarding the expansion of the recycled water system to indicate support of the five 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 6 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 3 of 13 

proposed projects [Director Memorandum 14-098].  On January 21, 2015, the District staff refined 
Resolution No. 2014-20 to focus on the following three recycled water pipeline projects: one in 
San Timoteo Canyon; one in Oak Glen; and the other in Mentone [Director Memorandum No. 15-
011].  The goal of these projects are to reduce the use of groundwater for irrigation purposes by 
utilizing recycled water produced by the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility.  In all three 
cases, the quality of the recycled water will easily meet the Basin objectives established by the 
Regional Water Quality Control Board in each area.   
 
On January 21, 2015, the Board of Directors approved Resolution Nos. 2015-06, 2015-07, and 
2015-08 supporting additional phases of the Integrated Recycled Water and Drought 
Preparedness Pipeline Projects in San Timoteo (Phase 3), Oak Glen (Phase 4), and Mentone 
(Phase 5). 
 
For all three proposed pipeline projects, the size of the recycled water pipelines will take into 
consideration: (1) the needs of customers; (2) existing and future sources of supply from other 
wastewater treatment plants: and (3) the full integration of a recycled water system for regional 
benefit.  Additionally, based on the Board of Directors approval of the attached resolutions, the 
District staff would initiate efforts to secure funding for these projects from various sources 
including, but not limited to project partners, loans, and grants. 
 
Groundwater Recharge with Recycled Water 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District has been actively recharging imported water at the Wilson 
Creek Spreading Basins for several years.  Since 2003, the District has recharged nearly 16,000 
acre feet of imported water at this location.  This recharge strategy has resulted in increased water 
stored in the Gateway Groundwater Basin, which is the groundwater basin located immediately 
below the Wilson Creek recharge facilities.    
 
On September 16, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized the District staff to complete the 
necessary applications for the recharge of recycled water at the Wilson Creek Spreading Basins.  
[Director Memorandum No. 15-086]  This is an important project that will improve the overall 
drought resiliency of the local groundwater basin. 
 

 
 
Overall, our groundwater management strategy involving the active recharge of water and the in-
lieu recharge via direct delivery of imported water to the Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 7 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 4 of 13 

Facility has enabled the Yucaipa Valley Water District to store nearly 70,000 acre feet of water in 
the region.  This represents about a six year supply of drinking water. 
 

 
 
 
Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District - Recycled Water System Interconnection 
 
On September 23, 2014, the District staff provided a status report on the Calimesa Recycled 
Water Conveyance Pipeline Project that will consist of approximately 18,500 linear feet of 24” 
recycled water pipeline that will provide recycled water to the southern Calimesa service area and 
provide for an interconnection with Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District.   
 
Prior to soliciting bids for this project, the District staff will be securing alternative funding from the 
State Water Resources Control Board to maximize the use of District funds to expand the recycled 
water system. 
 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

2
0
0
3

2
0
0
4

2
0
0
5

2
0
0
6

2
0
0
7

2
0
0
8

2
0
0
9

2
0
1
0

2
0
1
1

2
0
1
2

2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4

A
cr
e
 F
e
e
t

Cumulative Quantity of Imported Water 
Purchased From SBVMWD and SGPWA

Wholesale Drinking Water to Others

Imported Water to Spreading Basins

Imported Water to the Drinking Water Filtration Facility ‐ SGPWA

Imported Water to the Drinking Water Filtration Facility ‐ SBVMWD

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 8 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 5 of 13 

 
 
This proposed pipeline will enable the District to reduce the drinking water use to proposed 
projects in the City of Calimesa as well as provide an opportunity to exchange recycled water with 
the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District.  The use of this conveyance pipeline will provide an 
opportunity to deliver recycled water that is surplus to the needs of our community.  Likewise, the 
delivery of recycled water from Beaumont Cherry Valley will only be the quantity of recycled water 
that is surplus to the needs of their community.  The collaborative operation of this recycled water 
system interconnection will reduce the long-term drought impacts of both communities and 
increase the protection of local groundwater resources.   
 
 
Recycled Water Seasonal Storage Project 
 
The efficient use of recycled water requires that the supplies and demands for irrigation customers 
is balanced as they vary significantly throughout the year.  Surplus recycled water generated 
during the winter months is discharged to San Timoteo Creek because the District lacks the 
storage capacity to hold it until it can be utilized in the summer months.  As our recycled water 
demands continue to grow, it is highly likely that the peak summer recycled water demands will 
need to be supplemented with other water sources like groundwater or imported water. 
 
The illustration below shows the surplus recycled water currently available (dark purple) as 
compared to the current recycled water demands (light purple).   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 9 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 6 of 13 

 
 
 
On October 21, 2015, the Board of Directors approved Resolution No. 2015-19 that supported 
the investigation and evaluation of a Regional Recycled Water Seasonal Storage Project [Director 
Memorandum No. 15-097] 
 
The following illustration shows the proposed recycled water facilities without the seasonal 
storage project. 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Ja
n
‐1
2

M
ar
‐1
2

M
ay
‐1
2

Ju
l‐
1
2

Se
p
‐1
2

N
o
v‐
1
2

Ja
n
‐1
3

M
ar
‐1
3

M
ay
‐1
3

Ju
l‐
1
3

Se
p
‐1
3

N
o
v‐
1
3

Ja
n
‐1
4

M
ar
‐1
4

M
ay
‐1
4

Ju
l‐
1
4

Se
p
‐1
4

N
o
v‐
1
4

Ja
n
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
5

M
ay
‐1
5

Ju
l‐
1
5

Th
o
u
sa
n
d
 G
al
lo
n
s 
(k
ga
l)

Recycled Water Supply and Demand

Recycled Water Demand (kgal) Recycled Water Supply (kgal)

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 10 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 7 of 13 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 11 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 8 of 13 

 
 

Purification Plant Would End L.A. Agency's Need for 
Northern California Water 

The proposed project would treat sewage water and bring it up 
to drinking quality standards. 

 

 
 

Up against a historic drought and increasingly warm temperatures, one water management firm 

in Southern California is proposing a project it said would eliminate its need to draw from distant 

rivers and deltas. 

The Water Replenishment District of Southern California, which provides water to about 4 

million people in the southern part of Los Angeles County, proposed on Tuesday, Nov. 3, a water 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 12 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 9 of 13 

purification plant that would allow it to take water from a sewage treatment plant, bring it up to 

quality standards, and then pump it into underground aquifers. 

According to the Los Angeles Times, the project’s finances haven’t been nailed down yet — the 

money could come from state and local water bond programs — but the district plans on 

completing the facility in 2018. 

The district already owns the project site, an industrial location in the city of Pico Rivera, 

sandwiched between Montebello and Whittier. District officials put the cost at $95 million. 

The Los Angeles area, abundant in population but not water, has a long history of drawing water 

from distant areas. Today the California State Water Project pumps water through hundreds of 

miles of desert and mountain from a river delta west of Stockton to the southern part of the 

state. The replenishment district draws on the delta as well as the Colorado River. 

But the state has been in a drought of historic proportions for years, and an October report from 

the California Natural Resources Agency warned that residents need to buckle up for drought‐

like conditions to worsen. That’s because the temperature continues to climb, leading to 

reduced snowpack in the Sierra Mountains — a big source of water for the delta that feeds into 

the California State Water Project. 

For that very reason, the Natural Resources Agency has called on water districts to find ways to 

make their water sources more reliable. 

The proposed purification plant should make the district entirely self‐reliant, according to the 

Times article — it wouldn’t have to draw water from non‐local sources. It would also cut down 

the cost of water, as imported water costs about $1,000 per acre foot and purified sewage water 

costs around $200. 

http://www.govtech.com/fs/Purification‐Plant‐Would‐End‐LA‐Agencys‐Need‐for‐Northern‐California‐

Water.html      

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 13 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 10 of 13 

 
 

Singapore Has No Natural Water Supply, but the 
Country Isn’t Going Thirsty 

The island nation uses recycled water, desalinization, and 
artificial reservoirs to meet water demand. 

 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 14 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 11 of 13 

In just 10 years, two out of three people will be living in a country that’s struggling to meet 

demand for water, according to the United Nations. But even though Singapore has no aquifers or 

lakes, it’s unlikely that nation’s 5.5 million residents will be among the world’s thirsty. 

That’s because the small island nation, which consumes 400 million gallons daily, has a water 

strategy that is arguably one of the most successful in the world. 

“We have four national taps,” George Madhavan, the spokesperson for Public Utility Board, 

Singapore’s government agency in charge of water quality, conservation, and supply, said during a 

recent Meeting of the Minds urban‐sustainability conference in California.  The “taps” flow from 

desalinated seawater, recycled wastewater, water collected from rainfall, and an imported supply 

from neighboring Malaysia. 

Having a reliable source of water has always been on the government’s agenda, Madhavan said.  

“Without secure and reliable access to water in Singapore, business will not come,” he said. “So 

that’s a top priority to get a bigger piece of the pie.” 

The push to develop a mostly self‐sufficient water supply has been credited to Lee Kuan Kew, the 

country’s first prime minister, who took on the task in response to water shortages in the 1960s 

and ’70s. 

It wasn’t a quick fix. It took 30 years to put the system in place. 

The PUB water agency says its “jewel” is the ability to recycle used water, or wastewater from sinks 

and toilets, into what it calls NEWater.  The NEWater purification process, which Singapore 

launched in 2003 (after getting tips from the Orange County Water District’s wastewater‐recycling 

plant in Southern California), meets 30 percent of daily water demand.  While the recycled water is 

mainly used for industrial purposes, it also replenishes the country’s 17 reservoirs. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 15 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 12 of 13 

Recycled water can also supply water for drinking and cooking. According to PUB, NEWater has 

passed 130,000 scientific tests and exceeds the drinking water standards set by the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency and guidelines issued by the World Health Organization. 

Here’s what happens: The wastewater travels through a network of deep tunnel sewer pipes, then 

goes through conventional treatment at a sewage treatment plant.  It’s then either returned to the 

sea or sent to one of the country’s four NEWater plants for further purification, depending on 

demand. 

The NEWater plants follow a three‐step process. First, membranes filter out small particles such as 

solids and bacteria.  Next, reverse osmosis takes out larger contaminants.  Last, the water is 

disinfected with ultraviolet light and hydrogen peroxide. 

But Madhavan said the government knew a large part of successfully integrating recycled 

wastewater to its supply hinged on whether Singaporeans would want to drink it in the first place. 

“The difficult part isn’t the technology,” he said. “It’s getting the community to embrace recycled 

water.” 

To do that, the country had to get rid of the “yuck” factor.  For its NEWater branding campaign, it 

bottled the recycled water with a label featuring a cartoon water drop with a gigantic grin—and 

constructed a slick visitor center showing how the purification process works via games and 

interactive exhibits.  The water agency also brought reporters to the Orange County Water 

District’s water‐recycling plant, as well as to one in Scottsdale, Arizona. 

Another quarter of Singapore’s daily demand is met by its two desalinization plants, which 

together can process 100 million gallons a day. Because the plants are energy‐intensive, the 

country is experimenting with electrodeionization, a process that consumes less power. 

The third tap comes from rainwater collected from drains, canals, rivers, and storm water 

collection ponds. (Residents aren’t allowed to harvest water without the government’s 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 16 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-220  Page 13 of 13 

permission.) In combination with water imports from Malaysia, the rainwater fulfills the remaining 

45 percent of Singapore’s daily water needs. 

PUB is preparing for a projected doubling in demand by 2060. (Singapore’s water agreement with 

Malaysia is set to expire in 2061.)  The agency says it’s on track to triple its NEWater production 

and build two new desalinization plants that together will meet 80 percent of demand in 2060. 

Madhavan said Singapore thinks about water in a different way.  “You don’t want to drain it—you 

want to collect it,” he said.  

http://www.takepart.com/article/2015/11/05/singapores‐solution‐water‐crisis  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 17 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-221 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Overview of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 
Ending on June 30, 2015 

 
The certified public accounting firm of Vavrinek, Trine, Day and Company has completed the 
financial audit for the fiscal year ending on June 30, 2015.  Draft copies of the following documents 
are attached for your review: 

 Statements on Auditing Standards (SAS 114) (page 2 of 59); 
 Report on Internal Controls (GASAS Report) (page 4 of 59); and  
 Audited Financial Statements (page 6 of 59). 

 
A representative from Vavrinek, Trine, Day and Company will be at the board workshop to provide 
an overview of the audited financial documents and answer questions about the report.  The 
attached draft documents will be presented in final form at the board meeting on November 18, 
2015. 

 

$0

$20,000,000

$40,000,000

$60,000,000

$80,000,000

$100,000,000

$120,000,000

$140,000,000

$160,000,000

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
0

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
1

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
2

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
3

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
4

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
5

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
6

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
7

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
8

0
1
/0
1
/1
9
9
9

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
0

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
1

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
2

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
3

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
4

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
5

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
6

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
7

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
8

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
0
9

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
1
0

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
1
1

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
1
2

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
1
3

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
1
4

0
1
/0
1
/2
0
1
5

Total Assets by  District Enterprise

Water Assets

Sewer Assets

Recyled Water Assets

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 18 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 2 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 19 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 3 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 20 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 4 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 21 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 5 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 22 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 6 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 23 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 7 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 24 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 8 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 25 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 9 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 26 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 10 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 27 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 11 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 28 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 12 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 29 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 13 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 30 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 14 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 31 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 15 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 32 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 16 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 33 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 17 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 34 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 18 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 35 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 19 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 36 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 20 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 37 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 21 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 38 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 22 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 39 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 23 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 40 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 24 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 41 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 25 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 42 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 26 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 43 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 27 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 44 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 28 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 45 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 29 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 46 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 30 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 47 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 31 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 48 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 32 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 49 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 33 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 50 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 34 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 51 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 35 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 52 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 36 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 53 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 37 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 54 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 38 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 55 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 39 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 56 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 40 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 57 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 41 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 58 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 42 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 59 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 43 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 60 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 44 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 61 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 45 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 62 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 46 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 63 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 47 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 64 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 48 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 65 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 49 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 66 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 50 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 67 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 51 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 68 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 52 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 69 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 53 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 70 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 54 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 71 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 55 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 72 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 56 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 73 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 57 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 74 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 58 of 59 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 75 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-221  Page 59 of 59 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 76 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-222 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Overview of the California Drought and Yucaipa Valley Water District’s 
Action Plan Related to the State Water Resources Control Board 
Mandatory Restrictions to Achieve a 36% Reduction in Potable Urban 
Water Use 

 
On May 5, 2015, the State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) adopted emergency 
regulations to achieve a 25% statewide reduction in potable urban water use.  These stringent 
water use regulations will require the Yucaipa Valley Water District to achieve a 36% reduction 
from the amount of drinking water produced in 2013.  In order to achieve this level of water 
conservation, the Yucaipa Valley Water District will need to provide water based on the following 
water demand curve. 

 
  

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

T
ho

us
an

d 
G

al
lo

ns

Actual Water Consumption and Drought Regulatory Requirements

Potable Water Demand (kgal) Governor Brown Drought Compliance Goal

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 77 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-222  Page 2 of 8 

The chart above illustrates the difference between Governor Brown’s Drought Compliance Goal 
in 2014 at a 25% reduction, and in 2015 at a 36% reduction in potable water use based on the 
2013 baseline period. 
 
To achieve Governor Brown’s Drought Compliance Goal of a 36% reduction in potable water use 
from the 2013 baseline period, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has initiated numerous drought 
conservation programs and conducted a series of monthly community workshops to provide 
information to our customers. 
 
To achieve the 36% reduction, customers will need to immediately reduce the amount of water 
used for outdoor landscape purposes by 50% to 60%.   
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the ongoing and evolving implementation strategy 
for our community. 
 
 

Drought Status and Update 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 78 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-222  Page 3 of 8 

Latest Seasonal Assessment - During the past four weeks, persistently dry, warm weather 
contributed to an expansion and degradation of drought across the southern Plains and lower 
Mississippi Valley away from the immediate Gulf Coast, with many stations across the region 
recording top-5 driest Septembers on record. Short term abnormal dryness and areas of 
moderate drought also developed over parts of the middle Mississippi Valley. In contrast, 
excessive rainfall associated with an upper level low and a stalled frontal boundary inundated 
parts of the East. In particular, rainfall in excess of 20 inches across central and eastern South 
Carolina generated widespread catastrophic flooding. Rainfall also eased drought conditions 
across the Northeast, but pockets of moderate drought remain in southeastern New England 
and the Tri-State region. Abnormal heat dominated the western half of the CONUS, and while 
most regions remained status quo with respect to drought, areas of above average 
precipitation brought relief to parts of southern Arizona and New Mexico, southern Idaho, and 
Montana.  

Strong El Niño conditions are ongoing across the equatorial Pacific, with robust atmospheric 
coupling. The latest CPC ENSO advisory indicates a 95 percent chance that El Niño conditions 
will persist through the winter months. Therefore, climate anomalies associated with El Niño 
events, which become increasingly prominent over the U.S. during the Fall and Winter 
months, played a significant role in this outlook. Through the end of January, widespread 
drought relief is anticipated across the central and southern Plains, lower Mississippi Valley, 
and the eastern U.S. In contrast, a drier ENSO climate signal over the middle Mississippi and 
Ohio Valleys makes substantial relief of the short term drought conditions less likely, although 
there is too much uncertainty to warrant additional drought expansion in this outlook. Based 
on the CPC seasonal forecasts, the greatest potential for drought development is across the 
northern tier of states, including the Great Lakes region and northern Plains. Drought 
persistence or intensification is forecast across the Northwest. For the Southwest, El Niño 
associated climate anomalies favor an enhancement of the early wet season. Therefore, 
drought improvement is favored across central and southern California. There is greater 
confidence for improvement across the coastal regions and valleys, whereas significant 
improvement across the Sierras relies on colder temperatures to support substantial snowfall. 
Further east, drought removal or improvement is forecast across the southern Great Basin 
and interior deserts. A pronounced dry signal during El Niño years favors drought development 
across Hawaii. Drought persistence with no further expansion is forecast across Puerto Rico, 
where the start of the dry season may be offset by a wet climate signal during El Niño years. 
Drought development is not anticipated across Alaska during the first part of the winter 
season.  

Forecaster: Adam Allgood  

Next Seasonal Outlook issued: November 19, 2015 at 8:30 AM EDT  

Source: http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/expert_assessment/sdo_summary.html  

 
 

The National Weather Service and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration 
provides regular predictions for temperature and precipitation forecasts throughout the United 
States.  The following charts show the temperature and precipitation probability for the next 
month, as well as a compilation of future forecasts for temperature and precipitation. 
 
Temperature Forecast Legend: Orange/Red = Above Normal Temperatures 
     Blue = Below Normal Temperatures 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 79 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-222  Page 4 of 8 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 80 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-222  Page 5 of 8 

Precipitation Forecast Legend: Green = Above Normal Precipitation 
     Tan/Brown = Below Normal Precipitation 
 

Temperature Probability 
November 2015 

Precipitation Probability 
November 2015 

  
United Stated Drought Monitor Illustration 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 81 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-222  Page 6 of 8 

NOAA Multi-Season Precipitation Predictions - Three Month, Rolling Periods 
http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/predictions//multi_season/13_seasonal_outlooks/color/p.gif 

 
NOAA Multi-Season Temperature Predictions - Three Month, Rolling Periods 
http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/predictions//multi_season/13_seasonal_outlooks/color/t.gif 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 82 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-222  Page 7 of 8 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 83 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-222  Page 8 of 8 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 84 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-223 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Discussion Regarding a Cooperative Partnership with Curiosity Quest 
to Create Informational Videos for Various District Programs 

 
Recently Yucaipa Valley Water District and the Yucaipa-Calimesa Joint Unified School District 
partnered with Curiosity Quest to film an informational video on proper irrigation techniques.  The 
video is a great informational tool for the community and has aired on PBS several times since its 
production. 
 

 
 
Curiosity Quest is an upbeat family series where host Joel Greene takes viewers on a hands-on 
exploration of various topics and community interests in southern California. 
 
The staff members from the District and Curiosity Quest staff have been discussing the concept 
of producing additional video segments produced for use by the Yucaipa Valley Water District.  
These segments would be used on the District website, social media pages, and general public 
outreach.   
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 85 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-223  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

October 8, 2015 
 
Partnership Proposal with Yucaipa Valley Water District 

 
 CQ Productions will create (4) segments about specified water topics using the multi-

award winning Curiosity Quest Goes Green format, so they can be viewed by the 
community and used as resource for Yucaipa Valley Water District.  Each will be 3-5 
minutes in length and approved by the Yucaipa Valley Water District. 

o Segments provided will be as follows:  
1) Segment 1: Where does Yucaipa City water come from and how is it 

distributed?  
2) Segment 2: How is sewage processed, cleaned and used within the 

Yucaipa Valley Water District. 
3) Segment 3: How does the Recycled Water Filling Station Program work, 

where does the recycled water comes from and how can recycled water 
be used. 

4) Segment 4: Advanced technologies used to process Yucaipa’s drinking 
water and recycled water supplies 

 
 Said segments may be screened, distributed and viewed for educational purposes.  Full 

media and online rights will be granted to Yucaipa Valley Water District. Sale and copy 
of segments are not permitted unless otherwise agreed upon with CQ Productions.    
 

 Segments will be recorded in the Fall/Winter 2015/2016 and will be completed in 
Winter/Spring 2016.  
 

 Joint editorial control of Curiosity Quest Goes Green will be between Yucaipa Valley 
Water District and CQ Productions.   
 

 Curiosity Quest Goes Green may or may not air on other channels, networks, or 
different forms of sales and distribution.  Underwriting spots are for PBS distribution of 
programs only unless otherwise agreed upon.  
 

 The cost for services provided by CQ Productions will be a sum not to exceed $18,900. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District  CQ Productions, Producer 
 
 

  

Print Name  Print Name 
 
 

  

Signature  Signature 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 86 of 168



 

Capital Improvement Projects 

 
Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 87 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-224 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon Drinking 
Water Reservoir R-12.4 - Calimesa 

 
At the regular meeting on July 16, 2014, the Board authorized the solicitation of bids for the 
construction of a 6.0 Million Gallon R-12.4 Reservoir located on Singleton Road in Calimesa 
[Director Memorandum No. 14-060].  On November 19, 2014, the Board of Directors awarded the 
construction contract for the reservoir facility to Gateway Pacific Contractors [Director 
Memorandum No. 14-091].   
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the progress of the reservoir 
construction project.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 88 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-224  Page 2 of 5 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 89 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-224  Page 3 of 5 

 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 90 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-224  Page 4 of 5 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 91 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-224  Page 5 of 5 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 92 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-225 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Installation of a 30” Drinking Water Pipeline and 
a 12” Drinking Water Pipeline in Second Street, Yucaipa 

 
At the regular board meeting on September 3, 2014 the Board of Directors authorized the District 
staff to solicit bids for the construction of a 30” drinking water conveyance pipeline and 12” drinking 
water pipeline in Second Street, Yucaipa [Director Memorandum No. 14-072].   
 
On July 15, 2015, the Board of Directors awarded the construction contract to Borden Excavating 
for $536,755. [DM 15-070] 
 
At the board meeting on November 18, 2015, the District staff will be recommending the approval 
of Change Order No. 1 for a decrease of $8,375.00 due to the elimination of paving overlay and 
reduced inspection fees. 
 
 
 

 
Contract 
Changes 

Contract 
Amount 

Percentage Change 
from Original Bid 

Amount Reference 
Original Bid Amount  $536,755.00 - - DM 15-070 
Change Order No. 1 ($8,375.00) $528,380.00 1.6% decrease DM 15-0xx 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
Funding for this project will be from water depreciation reserves. 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 93 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-225  Page 2 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 94 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-225  Page 3 of 6 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 95 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-225  Page 4 of 6 

 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 96 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-225  Page 5 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 97 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-225  Page 6 of 6 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 98 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-226 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Installation of New Recycled Water Services and 
Recycled Water Pipelines Throughout the Service Area of the Yucaipa 
Valley Water District 

 
Over the past decade, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has been expanding the recycled water 
system to reduce the amount of potable water used by our community.  Currently the District uses 
only a portion of the total recycled water available for our community.  By increasing the availability 
of the recycled water supply to new properties, the District will be able to protect the entire 
community against current and future drought impacts. 
 

 
 
The District staff is working closely with property owners to facilitate new service connections to 
the existing recycled water system.  The following map shows some of the targeted customers in 
the Yucaipa portion of our service area.  The red parcels indicate properties planning for a new or 
expanded recycled water connection.  The pink parcels are already connected to the recycled 
water system. 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Ja
n
‐1
2

M
ar
‐1
2

M
ay
‐1
2

Ju
l‐
1
2

Se
p
‐1
2

N
o
v‐
1
2

Ja
n
‐1
3

M
ar
‐1
3

M
ay
‐1
3

Ju
l‐
1
3

Se
p
‐1
3

N
o
v‐
1
3

Ja
n
‐1
4

M
ar
‐1
4

M
ay
‐1
4

Ju
l‐
1
4

Se
p
‐1
4

N
o
v‐
1
4

Ja
n
‐1
5

M
ar
‐1
5

M
ay
‐1
5

Ju
l‐
1
5

Th
o
u
sa
n
d
 G
al
lo
n
s 
(k
ga
l)

Recycled Water Supply and Demand

Recycled Water Demand (kgal) Recycled Water Supply (kgal)

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 99 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-226  Page 2 of 3 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 100 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-226  Page 3 of 3 

On June 17, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized the District staff to solicit bids for the 
construction of new recycled water pipelines and service connections to the existing recycled 
water system [Director Memorandum No. 15-057]. 
 
On September 16, 2015, the Board of Directors awarded a construction contract to Weka for a 
sum not to exceed $411,536. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
Funding for this project will be from recycled water depreciation reserves.  
 
 
Additional Information 
 
In addition to new recycled water service connections, the District staff is working on a long-term 
plan to significantly expand the recycled water system as shown on the following map.  Milestones 
and future decisions related to the expansion of the recycled water system will be provided in 
subsequent updates and memorandums. 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 101 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-227 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Digester Cleaning and Cover Replacement 
Project at the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District operates and maintains four anaerobic digesters for sludge 
conditioning, each with a diameter of 45 feet and a side water depth of 22 feet, yielding a working 
capacity of approximately 262,000 gallons per digester.  The digesters treat sludge drawn from 
both the primary clarifiers and from the dissolved air flotation thickeners.  Digested sludge flows 
by gravity and can be stored temporarily in a sludge holding tank before being conveyed to the 
belt presses for dewatering.  To keep the digesters functioning properly they should be cleaned 
every 8-10 years in order to remove the accumulated build-up of sand, grit, and other debris.   
 

 
 
When the digesters were cleaned in 2005, the District staff assessed the condition of the digesters 
and related equipment.  Based on corrosion identified at this time, the District made a decision to 
replace at least two covers the next time the digesters were scheduled to be cleaned. 
 
In 2015, the District staff worked with RMC to develop a construction bid schedule that included 
a series of construction alternatives for cleaning and/or replacement of the digester covers.  After 
carefully evaluating the cleaning/construction bids received for this project, the Board of Directors 
decided to award a construction contract to Pascal & Ludwig for the cleaning and replacement of 
four digester covers for a sum not to exceed $2,175,000. [DM 15-041] 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an update on the status of the construction project. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 102 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-227  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 103 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-228 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Status Report on the Construction of Drinking Water Replacement 
Pipelines in Date Street, Dodd Street, Panorama Drive, Lennox 
Street, Verona Street and Calvin Street 

 
At the board meeting on November 18, 2015, the District staff will be requesting authorization to 
solicit bids for the replacement drinking water pipelines on Date Street, Dodd Street, Panorama 
Drive, Lennox Street, Verona Street and Calvin Street.  The proposed pipeline project involves 
the construction of 3,523 linear feet of 8-inch ductile iron pipe.  These pipes will replace existing 
4-inch steel, 6-inch steel and 6-inch asphalt concrete leak-prone pipe. 
 
This project is categorically exempt from environmental review in accordance with the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15301(c). 
 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 104 of 168



 

 

Administrative Items

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 105 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-229 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Review of the Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on 
October 31, 2015 

 
The District staff has prepared the attached Unaudited Financial Report for the period ending on 
June 30, 2015.  A graphical summary of the current operating budget is provided below and 
detailed information follows as part of the monthly unaudited financial report.   

 

 

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$16,000,000

Fiscal Year 2016 YTD Revenues & Budget Targets

Water Division

Sewer Division

Recycled Water Division

Water Budget

Sewer Budget

Recycled Water Budget

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$16,000,000

Fiscal Year 2016 YTD Expenses & Budget Targets

Water Division

Sewer Division

Recycled Water Division

Water Budget

Sewer Budget

Recycled Water Budget

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 106 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 2 of 31 

 

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

Ju
l‐
1
5

A
u
g‐
1
5

Se
p
‐1
5

O
ct
‐1
5

N
o
v‐
1
5

D
ec
‐1
5

Ja
n
‐1
6

Fe
b
‐1
6

M
ar
‐1
6

A
p
r‐
1
6

M
ay
‐1
6

Ju
n
‐1
6

Water Division Monthly Expense Summary ‐ FY 2016

Debt & Capital Outlay

Administration

Public Works

Water Resources

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

Ju
l‐
1
5

A
u
g‐
1
5

Se
p
‐1
5

O
ct
‐1
5

N
o
v‐
1
5

D
ec
‐1
5

Ja
n
‐1
6

Fe
b
‐1
6

M
ar
‐1
6

A
p
r‐
1
6

M
ay
‐1
6

Ju
n
‐1
6

Sewer Division Monthly Expense Summary ‐ FY 2016

Debt & Capital Outlay

Environmental Control

Administration

Sewer Treatment

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 107 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 3 of 31 

 

Director Memorandum 15-0xx 

Date: November 18, 2015 

Prepared By: Vicky Elisalda, Controller 
Peggy Little, Administrative Supervisor 

Subject: Unaudited Financial Report for the Period Ending on October 31, 2015 

Recommendation: That the Board receives and files the unaudited financial report as 
presented. 

 
The following unaudited financial report has been prepared by the Administrative Department for 
your review. The report has been divided into six sections to clearly disseminate information 
pertaining to the financial status of the District.  Please remember that the following financial 
information has not been audited. 
 

Cash Fund Balance Report 
[Detailed information can be found on page 5 to 6 of 29] 

 
The Cash Fund Balance Report provides a summary of how the total amount of funds maintained 
by financial institutions is distributed throughout the enterprise and non-enterprise funds of the 
District.  A summary of the report is as follows: 
 

Fund Source
Operating 

Funds
Restricted 

Funds
Total 

Funds
Water Division $7,114,208.61 $896,417.56 $8,010,626.17
Sewer Division $12,572,148.25 ($5,631,296.61) $6,940,851.64
Recycled Water Division $3,009,996.14 $369,859.32 $3,379,855.46

Total $22,696,353.00 ($4,365,019.73) $18,331,333.27  
 
Most of the funds reflected in the Cash Fund Balance Report are designated for specific purposes 
and are therefore restricted, either by law or by District policy.   
 

Check Register  
[Detailed information can be found on pages 9 to 13 of 31] 

 
The check register lists each check processed during the month of October 2015.  The District 
processed 199 checks during the month of October for a total sum of $1,729,760.98.  All checks 
are reviewed by District staff for accuracy and completeness, and usually signed by the General 
Manager and one Director, but may be signed by two Directors. 
 
The Controller will make any check, invoice or supporting documentation available for review to 
any board member upon request.   
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 108 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 4 of 31 

 
Financial Account Information 

[Detailed information can be found on pages 13 to 16 of 31] 
 

The District currently deposits all revenue received into the Deposit Checking account.  The 
General Checking account is used as a sole processing account for all District checks and 
electronic payroll.  The Investment Checking account is used for the purchase and redemption of 
US treasury notes and bills and for the transfer of LAIF funds.  The US treasury notes and bills 
are booked at cost. 
 
The LAIF investment account is a pooled money account administered by the State of California.  
Additional information on the LAIF account is provided below in the investment summary report. 
 

Investment Summary  
[Detailed information can be found on pages 17 to 18 of 31] 

 
The investment summary report illustrates the District's investments in US treasury notes and bills 
in addition to the investments held by the Local Agency Investment Fund or LAIF.  The yields for 
the treasury notes and bills are provided for each individual transaction.  The historical annual 
yield for funds invested with LAIF is also provided. 
 
Separate pooled money investment reports prepared by the State of California are maintained by 
the District and available for review. 
 

Monthly Revenue Allocation 
[Detailed information can be found on pages 19 to 21 of 31] 

 
During the month of October 2015 the District received a sum total of $2,384,311.75 in revenues 
from the following categories: 
 A total of $1,744,646.97 was received from 14,181 customers for utility bill payments.  This is 

the total amount of utility bill payments received from water, sewer and recycled services. 
 A total of $4,813.00 was received for construction meter deposits, customer deposits and 

internet fee payments. 
 A total of $409,084.64 was received from miscellaneous water related activities (other than 

utility bill charges).       
 A total of $225,709.00 was received from miscellaneous sewer related activities (other than 

utility bill charges).     
 A total of $58.14 was received from miscellaneous recycled related activities (other than utility 

bill charges).    
 

Fiscal Year 2016 Budget Status 
[Detailed information can be found on pages 22 to 31 of 31] 

 
The revenue and expense budget status for the 2016 Fiscal Year is provided for your review.  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 109 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 5 of 31 

Division Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Water 13,412,500 883,010 2,883,791 21.50%
Sewer 11,820,000 953,547 3,119,016 26.39%
Recycled Water 537,250 47,348 164,802 30.68%

District Revenue 25,769,750 1,883,905 6,167,609 23.93%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Water Resources 5,050,200 456,650 1,612,988 31.94%
Public works 2,385,800 137,186 541,154 22.68%
Administration 3,682,486 326,462 1,167,163 31.69%
Long Term Debt 2,294,014 0 1,653,457 72.08%
Asset Acquisition   0 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL 13,412,500 920,298 4,974,762 37.09%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Treatment 3,789,816 307,185 1,125,387 29.70%
Administration 3,151,840 254,348 999,206 31.70%
Environmental Control 982,300 86,005 284,628 28.98%
Long Term Debt 3,896,044 2,923,669 2,923,669 75.04%
Asset Acquisition-Palmer 0 0 0 0.00%

TOTAL 11,820,000 3,571,207 5,332,890 45.12%

Department Budget Amount Current Month Year-To-Date Percentage
Administration 537,250 40,196 143,428 26.70%

TOTAL 537,250 40,196 143,428 26.70%

District Expenses 25,769,750 4,531,701 10,451,080 40.56%

Summary of Recycled Water Budget

As of October 31, 2015 (29% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Revenue Budget

As of October 31, 2015 (29% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Water Budget

As of October 31, 2015 (29% of Budget Cycle)

Summary of Sewer Budget

As of October 31, 2015 (29% of Budget Cycle)

	
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 110 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 6 of 31 

Investment Policy Disclosure 
 
The District is currently compliant with the portfolio of its Investment Policy and State Law. 
 
The District is using Sandy Gage with Merrill Lynch Wealth Management (Bank of America 
Corporation) for Treasury investments.  The District expects to meet its expenditure requirements 
for the next six months. 
 
 

Questions or Comments 
 
If you have any questions about a particular budget account, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Controller directly.  If you need additional information, the members of the Administrative 
Department would be happy to provide you with any detailed information you may desire. 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 111 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 7 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 112 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 8 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 113 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 9 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 114 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 10 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 115 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 11 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 116 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 12 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 117 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 13 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 118 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 14 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 119 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 15 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 120 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 16 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 121 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 17 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 122 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 18 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 123 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 19 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 124 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 20 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 125 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 21 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 126 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 22 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 127 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 23 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 128 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 24 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 129 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 25 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 130 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 26 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 131 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 27 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 132 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 28 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 133 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 29 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 134 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 30 of 31 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 135 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-229  Page 31 of 31 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 136 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-230 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Discussion Regarding the Increased Implementation and Distribution 
of Weather-Based Wi-Fi Irrigation Controllers for Residential Water 
Customers of the Yucaipa Valley Water District 

 
On May 6, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized the District staff to (1) implement the necessary 
policies, procedures and priorities to distribute weather-based irrigation controllers for residential 
water customers pursuant to the State Water Resources Control Board Emergency Regulations 
and related Executive Orders by Governor Brown; (2) contract with Skydrop for the purchase of 
irrigation controllers and related equipment for a sum not to exceed $250,000; (3) provide regular 
updates on the status of this conservation program; and (4) authorize the General Manager to 
amend or terminate the implementation of this program at any time. 
 
The District has relied upon a report issued by 
the California Urban Water Conservation 
Council to help with the implementation of water 
conservation program implementation 
suggestions and estimated water savings from 
turf-based water conservation programs.  The 
report offered qualitative and quantitative 
context for turf-removal programs, described the 
challenges of program implementation and 
provided guidance to optimize program 
outcomes.   
 
Turf-based landscape programs involve two 
steps: turf removal and turf replacement.  The 
results of this type of water conservation 
program are highly variable based on customers’ 
aesthetic desires, location, financial ability, and 
the availability of landscape materials.  As public 
agencies continue to fund and implement turf 
removal programs during the drought, it is 
important to continue to review and evaluate the 
success of these programs to ensure policies are 
implemented in a manner that protect the funds 
ratepayers entrust with governmental agencies 
and achieve long-term water conservation goals. 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District implemented a multi-prong approach to achieve a 36% water 
conservation goal set by the State Water Resources Control Board.  While we continuously review 
all programs, we have identified that the use of Wi-Fi based irrigation controllers for residential 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 137 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230  Page 2 of 9 

water customers has the ability to quickly reduce our drinking water demands and provide a long-
term water reduction throughout the community. 
 
At the board workshop on April 28, 2015, the District staff demonstrated the use of a Wi-Fi based 
irrigation controller developed by Skydrop.  The Skydrop irrigation controller uses a home Wi-Fi 
system to provide localized weather data to control the amount of water used for outdoor irrigation.  
This type of device is useful for our climate in the foothills of the San Bernardino National Forest 
since we commonly experience rainstorms with a daytime temperatures in the 50’s followed by 
warm weather in the 80’s.  This technology automatically adjusts irrigation sprinklers to reduce 
the amount of water used when it is not needed based on weather conditions, soil type, sprinkler 
type and even landscaped slopes.   
 
During this agenda item, the District staff will present a renewed implementation plan to facilitate 
the distribution of the irrigation controllers to residential customers to achieve an increased goal 
of 2,500 units installed in our community.  This program is superior to limiting watering days during 
drought conditions, since the program will result in long-term water savings instead of temporary 
odd/even watering frequencies. 
 
Additionally, the District staff will be proposing the adoption of a resolution to support the 
installation of the Skydrop irrigation controller in each new home constructed in our service area. 
 
 
 

 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 138 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230  Page 3 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 139 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230  Page 4 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 140 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230  Page 5 of 9 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 141 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230  Page 6 of 9 

 
 

General FAQs 

How many zones can the Skydrop Controller manage? 
The standard Skydrop Controller is able to manage up to 8‐zones.  With Skydrop 
Expansion module an addition of 8‐zones can be managed, for a total of 16‐zones. 

Where does the Skydrop Controller get its weather data? 
Skydrop utilizes your Wi‐Fi connection to the Skydrop cloud and our network of 
weather stations. The Skydrop cloud service constantly monitors real‐time weather 
in your specific location and determines the optimal watering schedule based on 
what the weather conditions.  

How is the Skydrop Controller installed? 
Skydrop is very simple to install. It replaces your existing sprinkler timer, and the 
existing valve wires will plug directly into your new Skydrop Controller. Once you 
power up the controller for the first time, it will guide you through a Wi‐Fi 
connection setup 
process. Once 
connected to Wi‐Fi, it 
will gather weather 
data from the cloud, 
and also allows you 
to manage your 
system from a smartphone or computer. 

View the Quick Start Guide for details or view the Installation Video. 

Can I manage settings differently for each zone? 
Yes, each controller valve wire corresponds to a different zone.  When you first 
setup your zones, Skydrop will ask questions regarding that particular condition or 
each zone. These conditions consist of soil, sprinkler, plant type, slope, shade, etc. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 142 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230  Page 7 of 9 

Which mobile devices are currently compatible with Skydrop? 
Any Apple device running iOS 6.0 or newer & Android device running 4.0 (ice 
cream sandwich) or newer. 

How can I download or update my Skydrop App? 
The app can be downloaded through links on our website. It is also available from 
the Apple App Store or Google Play store, by searching “Skydrop Mobile”. The app 
will prompt for regular updates as with any 3rd party app on your smartphone or 
tablet. 

Do I need a mobile device, smartphone or browser to use Skydrop? 
No. Skydrop can be controlled using the jog‐dial & LCD screen on the device itself. 
Control can be accessed additionally from a computer, smartphone or tablet. 
*Some advanced settings are available only via a browser or the app. 

Are there any additional fees or costs associated with the Skydrop Controller? 
No. There are no additional fees or costs associated with the purchase or use of 
the controller. The manufacturer suggested retail price of the controller is $299.00 
+ tax. 

Am I able to integrate my own personal weather station into the Skydrop 
Controller? 
The controller cannot integrate with personal weather stations directly. Skydrop 
pulls hyper‐local weather data for your controller from our vast network or 
weather stations near you. However, the ability to connect to a personal weather 
station linked to the Weather Underground PWS Network is in development and 
should be available in the second quarter of 2015. 

How do I set up my Skydrop Controller account? 
You can create a new account or login to an existing Skydrop account by going to 
my.skydrop.com or accessing the Skydrop Mobile app. Creating & accessing a 
personal Skydrop account will give you the ability to manage your sprinkler system 
remotely. 

What type of power supply does Skydrop use? 
The controller uses a 24V AC power supply.  It is a small module which plugs 
directly into an AC socket, commonly known as a “wall wart.” 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 143 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230  Page 8 of 9 

Does the controller add to my existing system or does it replace what I have? 
The Skydrop controller will replace your existing sprinkler control system, but not 
existing valves or wires. 

What browsers does the Skydrop web 
interface (my.skydrop.com) support? 
Chrome, Safari & Firefox (IE9 or newer) 

Can the Skydrop Controller be installed 
outside? 
The device is built for indoor installation, 
but can be installed outdoors with use of an outdoor housing. Skydrop will be 
releasing an outdoor housing, which will be available in the later half of 2015.  

Does the Skydrop Controller have lightning strike and EMI protection? 
Yes.  The Skydrop Controller is resistant to interference and meets all FCC 
standards for unintentional EMI radiation. Skydrop has built‐in circuitry to protect 
against lightning strikes. 

Is the Controller heat & cold resistant? 
The Skydrop Controller is designed for indoor use (including the garage). 
Temperature resistance is a maximum 85C and minimum of ‐20C. 

Can I set specific watering instructions on my Controller? 
Yes. Skydrop’s smart watering system allows you to set specific schedules based on 
day, time, duration or local watering restrictions. 

How do I report a problem? 
You can reach us by any of the following Support methods: 
email – support@skydrop.com 
chat – http://www.skydrop.com/ 
call – 1‐844‐SKYDROP (844‐759‐3767) 

How does Skydrop make water conservation better than other “smart” 
controllers? 
The Skydrop controller will anticipate watering needs based on future weather 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 144 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-230  Page 9 of 9 

predictions. These weather updates are analyzed several times per day to ensure 
the greatest accuracy for your lawns watering needs. In addition, after the initial 
setup, the Skydrop controller enters a learning period where it will send 
notifications requesting feedback. With this information, Skydrop fine tunes the 
schedule and maximizes efficiency. See the article “How Skydrop smart watering 
works” for additional details on our smart watering methodology. 

Does Skydrop help conserve water? 
The EPA estimates that about 30% of a household’s water is used for 
irrigation.  Over 50% of that irrigation water is wasted through overwatering and 
evaporation. With Skydrop, those inefficiencies will be reduced by up to 50% by 
watering only based on need, rather than watering by a set weekly schedule. 

Why is water conservation so important? 
With water use in the United States increasing every year, many regions are 
starting to feel the pressure. In the last five years, nearly every region of the 
country has experienced a water shortage. At least 36 states are anticipating local, 
regional, or statewide water shortages by 2013, even under non‐drought 
conditions. Most of these municipalities are placing restrictions on watering to 
combat drought conditions. 

What happens if Skydrop loses its Internet connection? 
If you have been connected to the Skydrop cloud service at any time, the controller 
will use a backup watering schedule based on the device’s history. This schedule 
lacks the day‐to‐day smart watering intelligence, but will still operate using 
seasonal adjustments provided by historical data. If Skydrop does not have an 
active Internet connection, you will not be able to access your controller using a 
mobile device or web browser. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 145 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-231 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Discussion Regarding Draft Surplus Recycled Water Exchange 
Agreement Between Yucaipa Valley Water District and Beaumont 
Cherry Valley Water District 

 
At the board workshop on March 24, 2015, the District staff presented several items related to the 
ongoing drought (Workshop Memorandum Nos. 15-044 and 15-045) and the importance of 
constructing recycled water improvements to enhance our alternative water supply sources 
(Workshop Memorandum Nos. 15-046 and 15-047).   
 
While areas throughout the State are wrestling with the implementation of various drought 
solutions, the Yucaipa Valley Water District has a recycled water system in place that will allow 
us to facilitate the construction of a new recycled water conveyance pipelines to further reduce 
the demands on regional water resources by about 2,000 acre feet per year.  The new recycled 
water pipeline would interconnect the Yucaipa Valley Water District’s recycled water system with 
the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District’s recycled water system.  
 
With the construction of a recycled water interconnection pipeline, the two water agencies will be 
able to share recycled water resources.  Initially, recycled water that is surplus to the needs of the 
Yucaipa Valley Water District customers will be made available to customers in the service area 
of the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District.  Within the next five years, the City of Beaumont 
will be expanding and adding desalination facilities to their wastewater treatment plant that will 
then be able to produce recycled water consistent with the water quality objectives enforced by 
the Regional Water Quality Control Board.  Therefore, with an interconnected recycled water 
system, the recycled water resources that are surplus to the needs of the Yucaipa Valley Water 
District and generated from the Wochholz Regional Water Recycling Facility can be shared with 
the customers of the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District.  Likewise, the recycled water 
resources surplus to the needs of the Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District / City of Beaumont 
and generated from the City of Beaumont Wastewater Treatment Plant in the future can be shared 
with customers of the Yucaipa Valley Water District.   
 
This type of exchange agreement is commonly implemented with drinking water supplies.  As the 
drought continues to impact the State and more recycled water systems are constructed, the 
District staff envisions that there will be additional exchange agreements for sharing recycled 
water resources in the future. 
 
On April 1, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized District staff to develop a recycled water 
exchange and purchase contract between the two agencies [Director Memorandum No. 15-029].   
 
During this agenda item, the District staff will provide an update on the draft agreement. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 146 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 2 of 10 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 147 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 3 of 10 

AGREEMENT FOR RECYCLED WATER EXCHANGE  
BETWEEN THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT AND THE  

BEAUMONT CHERRY VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District, a County Water District (hereinafter referred to as 
"YVWD") and Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District, an Irrigation District (hereinafter 
referred to as "BCVWD"), (hereinafter also referred to as “Party” or collectively as the 
“Parties”), do hereby agree to establish this Recycled Water Exchange Agreement 
(“Agreement”), to provide for the delivery and exchange of locally treated surplus recycled 
water between the Parties, subject to the following provisions.  

 

1.  DEFINITIONS  

A. “Judgment” means the Court ruling and order rendered in San Timoteo 
Watershed Management Authority v. City of Banning, et. al., Case No. RIC 
389197, by the Superior Court of the State of California, County of 
Riverside, which governs the parties in that matter including YVWD and 
BCVWD relating to groundwater rights in the Beaumont Basin.  

B. “Receiving Entity” means the Party requesting and taking delivery of the 
Recycled Water.  

C. “Recycled Water” means a recycled water supply intended for non-potable 
use meets the water quality standards of Title 22 of the California Code of 
Regulations.  

D. “SGPWA” means the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, a State Water 
Contractor. 

E. “Supplying Entity” means the Party providing and delivering Recycled Water 
at the request of the Receiving Entity.  

F. “Surplus Recycled Water” means recycled water which is surplus to the 
needs of the Supplying Entity as determined in the sole discretion of the 
Supplying Entity. 

G. “Beaumont Basin” means the Upper San Timoteo area groundwater basin 
within which YVWD and BCVWD have groundwater pumping rights subject 
to and governed by the Judgment.  

H. “Year” means the calendar year beginning on January 1 to December 31. 

 

2. POINT OF RECYCLED WATER EXCHANGE - FROM YVWD TO BCVWD 

Recycled Water shall be delivered by YVWD as the Supplying Entity and received by 
BCVWD as the Receiving Entity at the following locations (“Interconnections”) owned, 
operated and maintained by YVWD:  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 148 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 4 of 10 

A. Cherry Valley Boulevard Interconnection southwest of Interstate 10 north of 
Palmer Avenue (“Interconnection A”).  

B. Cherry Valley Boulevard Interconnection east of Interstate 10 at a future 
location to be determined (“Interconnection B”).  

C. Any agreed upon future recycled water system interconnections by the 
Parties.  

 

3. POINT OF RECYCLED WATER EXCHANGE - FROM BCVWD TO YVWD 

Recycled Water shall be delivered by BCVWD as the Supplying Entity and received by 
YVWD as the Receiving Entity at the following locations (“Interconnections”) owned, 
operated and maintained by BCVWD:  

A. At a future recycled water system interconnection(s) determined by the 
Parties.  

 

4. SERVICE CONDITIONS  

A. Only those quantities and flow rates of Surplus Recycled Water may be 
made available to the Receiving Entity that will not adversely affect the 
Supplying Entity.  

B. The Surplus Recycled Water pressure shall be that of the Supplying Entity’s 
system at the time of delivery.  

C. All Surplus Recycled Water deliveries shall be considered interruptible.  

D. The details of Surplus Recycled Water delivery shall be by mutual 
agreement of the General Managers, or their designees, for BCVWD and 
YVWD.  

E. Neither Party will be obligated to provide any Recycled Water under this 
Agreement if either Party determines in its sole discretion, that Surplus 
Recycled Water is not available.  

 

5. RECYCLED WATER INFRASTRUCTURE 

YVWD has prepared design drawings and construction specifications for the Calimesa 
Recycled Water Conveyance Pipelines (“Pipelines”).  These pipelines are generally 
illustrated in Exhibit “A”.   

The construction schedule of these Pipelines are dependent upon the availability of 
funding from the Parties and the State Water Resources Control Board. 

The Parties shall pursue funding for this project from the State Water Resources Control 
Board to facilitate the construction of the Pipelines. 

At each Interconnection, the Supplying Entity will operate, maintain and own the above-
ground and below ground infrastructure including, but not limited to, SCADA, electrical 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 149 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 5 of 10 

power, meter, totalizer, valves, pressure regulators, and flow control systems.  Ownership 
of recycled water facilities shall transition to the Receiving Entity 10 feet from the first 
valve downstream of the flow meter. 

The Parties shall own, operate and maintain the Pipelines, reservoirs, boosters and other 
recycled water related infrastructure located within their respective service territories.   

 

6.  RECYCLED WATER EXCHANGES  

Any Recycled Water supplied by YVWD to BCVWD, or by BCVWD to YVWD, through the 
Interconnection(s) subject to this Agreement shall be returned in like volume, or value, as 
measured and recorded by the meter at the Interconnection.  The delivery of recycled 
water shall be provided at a 120-month rolling average salinity level equal to the Maximum 
Benefit Objective of the Beaumont Management Zone or 330 mg/l of total dissolved 
solids, whichever is higher.  Recycled water quality data between the Parties shall be 
exchanged on a quarterly basis. 

 

A. Interim Value-Based Exchange - Capital Cost Reimbursement / Recycled 
Water Pre-Payment 

YVWD and BCVWD have jointly agreed to participate in the financing of the 
Pipelines.  BCVWD shall deposit 50% of the actual construction contract 
(“deposited funds”) approved by the YVWD Board of Directors (excluding 
inspection and construction management services) minus State Water 
Resources Control Board grants in advance of YVWD awarding construction 
bids for the Pipeline project.  The deposited funds will be applied by YVWD 
immediately towards the construction of the Pipelines.  The amount of 
deposited funds shall result in a credit to BCVWD which will be applied to 
charges incurred by BCVWD for Surplus Recycled Water provided by YVWD 
to BCVWD at a cost equal to $300 per acre foot of recycled water delivered 
by YVWD to BCVWD at the Interconnection until all deposited funds are 
exhausted.  The Parties shall maintain records of the Interim Value-Based 
Exchanges which shall be reconciled at the end of each month. 

 

B. Cost-Based Exchange Rate 

The cost of Surplus Recycled Water supplied through the Interconnection(s) 
subject to this Agreement after the use of funds provided as the Interim 
Value-Based Exchange above, will be at a rate established by the governing 
Board of Directors of the Supplying Entity.  This cost shall be modified at the 
sole discretion of the Supplying Entity.  Unless otherwise approved by the 
Parties, Surplus Recycled Water shall be subject to the Cost-Based 
Exchange methodology with payment due to the Supplying Entity within thirty 
(30) calendar days from the date of each monthly invoice. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 150 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 6 of 10 

C. Value-Based Exchange Rate 

In addition to or as a substitute for the Cost-Based Exchange Rate in Section 
6.B. above, the Parties agree that there is a mutual benefit to utilize local 
water infrastructure for regional benefit.  Therefore, the governing Board of 
Directors of each Party will develop independent rates, fees and charges for 
the use of other infrastructure such as recharge basins, desalination facilities, 
drinking water sources, Beaumont Basin groundwater held in storage that 
can be applied as like-value and exchanged between the Parties pursuant to 
the Value-Based Exchange concept. 

The Parties shall maintain records of the Value-Based Exchanges which 
shall be reconciled by the 10th day following the last day of the preceding 
calendar month.  Value-Based Exchanges shall be accounted up to a 
maximum dollar threshold each Calendar Year as determined and agreed to 
in writing between the Parties. 

 

D. Volumetric-Based Exchange Rate 

In addition to or as a substitute for the Cost-Based Exchange Rate in Section 
6.B. above, any Recycled Water supplied through the Interconnection(s) 
subject to this Agreement may be returned in like volume as measured by 
the meter on the Interconnection, when requested by the Party supplying the 
Recycled Water.  The Parties shall maintain records of the exchanges which 
shall be reconciled by the end of each year in either Recycled Water volume 
or value as described in Section 5.B.  

If the Parties anticipate the use of a Volumetric-Based Exchange, the quantity 
of recycled water to be exchanged in a Calendar Year shall be approved in 
advance by the Board of Directors of both Parties. 

 

7. ADDITIONAL RECYCLED WATER USES 

The Parties agree to pursue the recharge of recycled water in the Beaumont Management 
Zone.  The Parties will cooperate and proportionally share all costs and benefits 
associated with the proposed project. 

 

8. INDEMNITY  

In consideration of the terms and provisions of this Agreement, BCVWD and YVWD do 
hereby agree to relieve, release, defend, hold harmless and forever discharge the other 
Party and each of its officers, agents, and employees and each of them of and from any 
and all claims, rights, debts, liabilities, demands, obligations, liens, promises, acts, 
agreements, costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, attorney's fees and costs), 
damages, fines and penalties, actions and causes of action, of whatever kind or nature 
(including without limitation any statutory, civil or administrative claim), whether known or 
unknown, suspected or unsuspected, fixed or contingent, apparent or concealed, in any 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 151 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 7 of 10 

way based on, arising out of or related to or connected with this Agreement or the delivery 
of Surplus Recycled Water to the other Party.  

The obligations to indemnify, defend, and hold one another harmless shall remain in effect 
and shall be binding upon the Parties whether such injury or damage shall accrue or may 
be discovered before or after termination of this Agreement.  

 

9. INSURANCE  

Both BCVWD and YVWD represent that they are each insured and maintain the following 
limits:  

 General Liability $2,000,000;  

 Automobile Liability $2,000,000;  

 Worker’s Compensation Liability $2,000,000.  

Each of the Parties further warrant that the limits of their self-insurance coverage meet or 
exceed the requirements and obligations as set forth, and to the extent permitted by State 
law.  

 

10. TERM  

This Agreement shall have a minimum term of five years from the date of execution by 
the Parties but either party may terminate this Agreement upon ninety (90) days written 
notice to the other Party.  Any funds on deposit or balances owed to a Party shall be 
reconciled and paid within 45 days following the date of termination of this Agreement.   

 

11.  NOTICES  

All correspondence between the Parties to this Agreement shall be addressed as follows:  

 
For BCVWD:  General Manager  

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District 
560 Magnolia Avenue 
Beaumont, California 92223  

 
For YVWD:  General Manager  

Yucaipa Valley Water District 
12770 Second Street 
Yucaipa, California 92399 

 

12.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT  

This jointly prepared Agreement represents the entire integrated agreement between the 
Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 152 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 8 of 10 

written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument signed by 
both Parties.  

 

13.  ASSIGNMENT  

Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to any 
party other than the Parties hereto.  Neither of the Parties shall assign any right or interest 
in this Agreement, nor delegate any duty owed, without the other’s prior written consent.  
Any attempted assignment or delegation shall be void and totally ineffective for all 
purposes, and shall constitute a material breach and grounds for immediate termination 
or suspension of this Agreement.  In the event the Parties consent to an assignment of 
delegation, the assignee, delegate, or its legal representative shall agree in writing to 
personally assume, perform, and be bound by this Agreement’s covenants, conditions, 
obligations and provisions.  

 

14. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS  

Subject to the provisions regarding assignment, this Agreement shall be binding on the 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective Parties.  

 

15. GOVERNING LAW  

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.  

 

16. SEVERABILITY  

Should any Party, term or provisions of this Agreement be declared invalid, void or 
unenforceable, all remaining parts, terms and provisions hereof shall remain in full force 
and effect.  

 

17. FORCE MAJEURE  

Neither Party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations 
hereunder or any of them, if such obligations were prevented or delayed by any cause, 
existing or future beyond the reasonable control of such Party which include but are not 
limited to acts of God, labor disputes, civil unrest, water supply deficiencies, mechanical 
failure, interruption in electrical energy, natural disaster, drought, and regulatory issues. 

 

18. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

Any dispute as to the construction, interpretation or implementation of this Agreement, or 
any rights or obligations hereunder, shall be submitted to non-binding mediation before a 
neutral, impartial mediation service that the Parties mutually agree upon in accordance 
with its rules for such mediation.  In the event that the parties are not able to agree on a 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 153 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 9 of 10 

neutral, impartial mediation service, then either Party may petition the Riverside County 
Superior Court to appoint a neutral, impartial mediator. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Yucaipa Valley Water District and the Beaumont Cherry 
Valley Water District have duly executed this Agreement on this _____ day of 
_______________, 2015. 

 

  BEAUMONT CHERRY VALLEY WATER 
DISTRICT 

   
  Jeffrey Cottrell, President Board of Directors 
   
ATTEST:   

   
Eric Fraser, General Manager   

 

 

  YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

   
  Lonni Granlund, President Board of Directors 
   
ATTEST:   

   
Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   

 

 

  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 154 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-231  Page 10 of 10 

Exhibit “A” 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 155 of 168



 

Workshop Memorandum 15-232 

Date: November 10, 2015 

Subject: Discussion Regarding a Draft Joint Use Agreement for the Nobel 
Creek Recharge Facility 

 
The Yucaipa Valley Water District continues to work closely with other agencies in the region to 
form productive and beneficial partnerships that improve the overall water reliability in the region.  
Currently, the District staff is discussing the development of a joint use agreement for the Nobel 
Creek Recharge Facility owned by Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District. 
 

 
 
The purpose of this agenda item is to discuss the concepts of a joint use agreement that would 
provide Yucaipa Valley Water District with an opportunity to recharge water in the Beaumont 
Basin. 
 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 156 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-232  Page 2 of 5 

AGREEMENT FOR THE JOINT USE OF THE  
NOBLE CREEK RECHARGE FACILITY BETWEEN THE  

BEAUMONT CHERRY VALLEY WATER BCVWD AND THE  
YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is by and among the BEAUMONT-CHERRY VALLEY WATER 
DISTRICT ("BCVWD"), YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT ("YVWD"), collectively 
hereinafter called "PARTIES". 
 

RECITALS 
 
A.  San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency ("AGENCY") has a contract with the State of 

California to import supplemental water from the State Water Project and other 
sources when available to the San Gorgonio Pass Area.  BCVWD and YVWD may 
purchase water from the AGENCY for their respective use. 

 
B.  PARTIES desire to recharge the Beaumont Groundwater Basin with supplemental 

water. 
 
C. BCVWD has constructed, owns, and operates existing spreading basins at 

Brookside and Beaumont Avenue known as the Noble Creek Recharge Facility 
("SPREADING BASINS"). 

 
D.  BCVWD is the fee owner of the land containing those spreading basins in the form 

of percolation ponds and operates extraction wells nearby said ponds.   
 
E.  BCVWD has the right to use its land pursuant to its authority as an Irrigation District 

duly formed and operating under the laws of the State of California for purposes 
including, but not limited to groundwater recharge. 

 
F.  The proposed use contemplated by this Agreement of the SPREADING BASINS 

for recharge of imported supplemental water by YVWD is consistent with said 
existing uses and will further the intent of the parties to provide for banking of 
supplemental imported water for future use by, or credit to, YVWD. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BCVWD and YVWD in consideration of the mutual promises as set 
forth herein, agree to the following: 
 
1.  RECHARGE:  Subject to the rights of BCVWD and YVWD as provided herein, 

YVWD may recharge supplemental water into the SPREADING BASINS upon 
mutual agreement of the PARTIES on the timing and amounts of water to be 
delivered. 

 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 157 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-232  Page 3 of 5 

2.  RECHARGE FEE:  In consideration for the utilization of the recharge facility to 
recharge water obtained from AGENCY, YVWD shall pay BCVWD an amount of 
$61.14 per acre foot of supplemental water delivered by the AGENCY to the 
SPREADING BASINS.  BCVWD may revise the RECHARGE FEE with 180 day 
written notice to YVWD based on actual costs of operation, with all such costs, 
calculations and supporting documentation shown in the notice.  YVWD agrees to 
pay invoices issued by the BCVWD within 30 days of issuance, provided that none 
of the changes are contested.  The BCVWD at its sole discretion may accept the 
delivery of recycled water in lieu of payment as described above.   

 
3.  FACILITY OWNERSHIP:  YVWD shall not claim, or otherwise be entitled to, 

ownership of any water rights of local waters as a result of recharge activities 
conducted by BCVWD at the SPREADING BASINS.  BCVWD shall not claim or 
otherwise be entitled to ownership of any water supply or water rights in 
supplemental water imported by YVWD. 

 
4.  DISCONTINUANCE OF WATER RECHARGE: YVWD shall immediately 

discontinue recharge of supplemental water upon receipt of written notice by 
BCVWD that based on local surface water flow in Little San Gorgonio Creek, Noble 
Creek, or other local sources of supply sufficient capacity does not exist to allow 
for use of the SPREADING BASINS.  BCVWD shall notify YVWD in writing when 
supplemental imported water recharge can be resumed.  

 
5.  DISCONTINUANCE OR REDUCTION OF DELIVERIES TO YVWD FOR 

MAINTENANCE REASONS:  PARTIES agree that the use and operation of the 
SPREADING BASINS is under full control by BCVWD and that supplemental water 
deliveries to BCVWD shall take priority in the event SPREADING BASIN capacity 
is limited due to maintenance or other reasons.  BCVWD shall make reasonable 
attempts to accommodate YVWD deliveries but does not guarantee any minimum 
annual percolation rates or SPREADING BASIN capacity to accommodate YVWD 
deliveries from AGENCY. 

 
6.  SPREADING NOT REQUIRED:  Nothing in this Agreement shall require YVWD to 

take delivery of supplemental water at the SPREADING BASINS.  YVWD does not 
guarantee any minimum amount of supplemental imported water to the 
SPREADING BASINS. 

 
7. PURCHASE OF SUPPLEMENTAL WATER:  YVWD shall be solely responsible 

for the cost of all supplemental imported water ordered and delivered from 
AGENCY for YVWD use.  BCVWD shall be responsible for the cost of all water 
ordered and delivered by AGENCY for BCVWD use.   

 
8.  TERM: The initial term for this Agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years 

from the date of execution, or until December 31, 2020, whichever is later.  The 
initial term may be extended upon the written agreement of the PARTIES prior to 
expiration of the then current term.  However, and notwithstanding the five (5) year 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 158 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-232  Page 4 of 5 

term, each PARTY shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) 
days prior written notice to the other PARTY. 

 
9.  MONITORING AND REPORTS: YVWD agrees to provide BCVWD with copies of 

all invoices issued by AGENCY that reflect the amount of water ordered for YVWD 
use and delivered to SPREADING BASINS.  Said invoices and confirmed 
deliveries by the AGENCY shall be used as the basis for establishing the 
RECHARGE FEE due to BCVWD. 

 
10.  DISPUTE RESOLUTION : Any controversy between the PARTIES regarding the 

construction of improvements, application or interpretation of this Agreement, 
and/or any claim arising out of this Agreement, must be submitted to non-binding 
mediation before a neutral, qualified mediator from a reputable mediation service 
such as Judicial Arbitration & Mediation Services.  No. judicial or other action may 
be commenced before such mediation occurs. 

 
11.  ASSIGNMENT: This Agreement shall be binding upon the transferees, 

assignees/successors, and assigns of the parties hereto. 
 
12.  INDEMNITY, HOLD HARMLESS:  
 

A. YVWD shall indemnify and hold harmless BCVWD and the officers, 
directors, employees, and authorized volunteers of BCVWD, from and 
against any damage, liability, or cost (including attorneys' fees and costs of 
defense) to the extent caused by YVWD's negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions in connection with activities under this Agreement, including 
subcontractors or others for whom AGENCY is legally liable.  YVWD's 
obligation to indemnify and hold harmless shall not be restricted to available 
insurance proceeds. 
 

B. BCVWD shall indemnify and hold harmless YVWD and the officers, 
directors, employees, and authorized volunteers of YVWD, from and 
against any damage, liability, or cost (including attorneys' fees and costs of 
defense) to the extent caused by BCVWD's negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions in connection with activities under this Agreement.  BCVWD's 
obligation to indemnify and hold harmless shall not be restricted to available 
insurance proceeds. 

 
13.  INSURANCE:  Each party agrees to carry $1,000,000 / $2,000,000 (occurrence/ 

general and products/completed operations aggregate) of commercial general 
liability coverage and each party agrees to give the other, its directors, officers, 
employees, or authorized volunteers insured status under its policy using ISO 
endorsement CG 2010, or equivalent, and to provide a certificate of insurance and 
additional insured endorsement.  If any PARTY is self-insured for legal liability, it 
is understood that said coverage will be equal to, or greater than, the amount 
identified above. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 159 of 168



Workshop Memorandum No. 15-232  Page 5 of 5 

 
14.  This Agreement shall become effective upon receipt by each of the PARTIES of 

two executed counterpart signature pages from each of the other PARTIES. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Yucaipa Valley Water District and the Beaumont Cherry 
Valley Water District have duly executed this Agreement on this _____ day of 
_______________, 2015. 
 
 
 

BEAUMONT CHERRY VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
  

 
  Jeffrey Cottrell, President Board of Directors 
   
ATTEST:   

 
  

Eric Fraser, General Manager   
 
 
 
 

YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
  

 
  Lonni Granlund, President Board of Directors 
   
ATTEST:   

 
  

Joseph B. Zoba, General Manager   
 
 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 160 of 168



 

 

Director Comments 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 161 of 168



June 2014 
 

 
 

FACTS ABOUT THE YUCAIPA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

Service Area Size: 40 square miles (sphere of influence is 68 square miles) 
 
Elevation Change: 3,140 foot elevation change (from 2,044 to 5,184 feet) 
 
Number of Employees: 5 elected board members 

57 full time employees 
 
Operating Budget: Water Division - $13,072,750  
 Sewer Division - $11,689,000 
 Recycled Water Division - $433,500 
 Total Annual Budget - $25,195,250 
 
Number of Services: 12,206 water connections serving 16,843 units 

13,492 sewer connections serving 20,312 units 
62 recycled water connections 

 
Water System: 215 miles of drinking water pipelines 

27 reservoirs - 34 million gallons of storage capacity 
18 pressure zones 
12,000 ac-ft annual water demand (3.9 billion gallons) 
Two water filtration facilities: 

- 1 mgd at Oak Glen Surface Water Filtration Facility 
- 12 mgd at Yucaipa Valley Regional Water Filtration Facility 

 
Sewer System: 8.0 million gallon treatment capacity - current flow at 4.0 mgd 

205 miles of sewer mainlines 
5 sewer lift stations 
4,500 ac-ft annual recycled water prod. (1.46 billion gallons) 

 
Recycled Water: 22 miles of recycled water pipelines 

5 reservoirs - 12 million gallons of storage 
1,200 ac-ft annual recycled demand (0.4 billion gallons) 

 
Brine Disposal:  2.2 million gallon desalination facility at sewer treatment plant 

1.108 million gallons of Inland Empire Brine Line capacity 
0.295 million gallons of treatment capacity in Orange County

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 162 of 168



June 2014 
 

 

 
  

THE MEASUREMENT OF WATER PURITY 
 

One part per hundred is generally represented by the percent (%).  
This is equivalent to about fifteen minutes out of one day. 

 
One part per thousand denotes one part per 1000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about one and a half minutes out of one day. 
 
One part per million (ppm) denotes one part per 1,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about 32 seconds out of a year. 
 
One part per billion (ppb) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000 parts.   

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of a century. 
 
One part per trillion (ppt) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000 parts. 

This is equivalent to about three seconds out of every hundred thousand years. 
 
One part per quadrillion (ppq) denotes one part per 1,000,000,000,000,000 parts.  

This is equivalent to about two and a half minutes out of the age of the Earth (4.5 
billion years).  

 

 
  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 163 of 168



June 2014 
 

 
  

GLOSSARY OF COMMONLY USED TERMS 
 
Every profession has specialized terms which generally evolve to facilitate communication between individuals.  
The routine use of these terms tends to exclude those who are unfamiliar with the particular specialized language 
of the group.  Sometimes jargon can create communication cause difficulties where professionals in related fields 
use different terms for the same phenomena. 

Below are commonly used water terms and abbreviations with commonly used definitions.  If there is any 
discrepancy in definitions, the District's Regulations Governing Water Service is the final and binding definition.  

 

Acre Foot of Water - The volume of water (325,850 gallons, or 43,560 cubic feet) that would cover an area of 
one acre to a depth of 1 foot.  

Activated Sludge Process – A secondary biological sewer treatment process where bacteria reproduce at a 
high rate with the introduction of excess air or oxygen, and consume dissolved nutrients in the wastewater. 

Annual Water Quality Report - The document is prepared annually and provides information on water quality, 
constituents in the water, compliance with drinking water standards and educational material on tap water.  It is 
also referred to as a Consumer Confidence Report (CCR).  

Aquifer - The natural underground area with layers of porous, water-bearing materials (sand, gravel) capable of 
yielding a supply of water; see Groundwater basin.  

Backflow - The reversal of water's normal direction of flow.  When water passes through a water meter into a 
home or business it should not reverse flow back into the water mainline.  

Best Management Practices (BMPs) - Methods or techniques found to be the most effective and practical 
means in achieving an objective.  Often used in the context of water conservation.  

Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD) – The amount of oxygen used when organic matter undergoes 
decomposition by microorganisms.  Testing for BOD is done to assess the amount of organic matter in water. 

Biosolids – Biosolids are nutrient rich organic and highly treated solid materials produced by the sewer treatment 
process.  This high-quality product can be used as a soil amendment on farm land or further processed as an 
earth-like product for commercial and home gardens to improve and maintain fertile soil and stimulate plant 
growth. 

Catch Basin – A chamber usually built at the curb line of a street, which conveys surface water for discharge 
into a storm sewer. 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – Projects for repair, rehabilitation, and replacement of assets.  Also 
includes treatment improvements, additional capacity, and projects for the support facilities. 

Collector Sewer – The first element of a wastewater collection system used to collect and carry wastewater 
from one or more building sewer laterals to a main sewer. 

Coliform Bacteria – A group of bacteria found in the intestines of humans and other animals, but also 
occasionally found elsewhere and is generally used as an indicator of sewage pollution.   

Combined Sewer Overflow – The portion of flow from a combined sewer system, which discharges into a water 
body from an outfall located upstream of a wastewater treatment plant, usually during wet weather conditions. 

Combined Sewer System– Generally older sewer systems designed to convey both sewage and storm water 
into one pipe to a wastewater treatment plant. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 164 of 168



June 2014 
 

Conjunctive Use - The coordinated management of surface water and groundwater supplies to maximize the 
yield of the overall water resource.  Active conjunctive use uses artificial recharge, where surface water is 
intentionally percolated or injected into aquifers for later use.  Passive conjunctive use is to simply rely on surface 
water in wet years and use groundwater in dry years. 

Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) - see Annual Water Quality Report.  

Cross-Connection - The actual or potential connection between a potable water supply and a non-potable 
source, where it is possible for a contaminant to enter the drinking water supply. 

Disinfection By-Products (DBPs) - The category of compounds formed when disinfectants in water systems 
react with natural organic matter present in the source water supplies.  Different disinfectants produce different 
types or amounts of disinfection byproducts. Disinfection byproducts for which regulations have been established 
have been identified in drinking water, including trihalomethanes, haloacetic acids, bromate, and chlorite 

Drought - a period of below average rainfall causing water supply shortages.  

Dry Weather Flow – Flow in a sanitary sewer during periods of dry weather in which the sanitary sewer is under 
minimum influence of inflow and infiltration. 

Fire Flow - The ability to have a sufficient quantity of water available to the distribution system to be delivered 
through fire hydrants or private fire sprinkler systems.  

Gallons per Capita per Day (GPCD) - A measurement of the average number of gallons of water use by the 
number of people served each day in a water system. The calculation is made by dividing the total gallons of 
water used each day by the total number of people using the water system.  

Groundwater Basin - An underground body of water or aquifer defined by physical boundaries.  

Groundwater Recharge - The process of placing water in an aquifer.  Can be a naturally occurring process or 
artificially enhanced.  

Hard Water - Water having a high concentration of minerals, typically calcium and magnesium ions.  

Hydrologic Cycle - The process of evaporation of water into the air and its return to earth in the form of 
precipitation (rain or snow).  This process also includes transpiration from plants, percolation into the ground, 
groundwater movement, and runoff into rivers, streams and the ocean; see Water cycle.  

Infiltration – Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and/or building laterals from the ground 
through defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes.  Infiltration does not include inflow.  See Inflow. 

Inflow - Water other than sewage that enters a sewer system and building sewer from sources such as roof 
vents, yard drains, area drains, foundation drains, drains from springs and swampy areas, manhole covers, cross 
connections between storm drains and sanitary sewers, catch basins, cooling towers, storm waters, surface 
runoff, street wash waters, or drainage.  Inflow does not include infiltration.  See Infiltration. 

Inflow / Infiltration (I/I) – The total quantity of water from both inflow and infiltration. 

Mains, Distribution - A network of pipelines that delivers water (drinking water or recycled water) from 
transmission mains to residential and commercial properties, usually pipe diameters of 4" to 16".  

Mains, Transmission - A system of pipelines that deliver water (drinking water or recycled water) from a source 
of supply the distribution mains, usually pipe diameters of greater than 16".  

Meter - A device capable of measuring, in either gallons or cubic feet, a quantity of water delivered by the District 
to a service connection.  

Overdraft - The pumping of water from a groundwater basin or aquifer in excess of the supply flowing into the 
basin. This pumping results in a depletion of the groundwater in the basin which has a net effect of lowering the 
levels of water in the aquifer.  

Peak Flow – The maximum flow that occurs over a specific length of time (e.g., daily, hourly, instantaneously). 

Pipeline - Connected piping that carries water, oil or other liquids.  See Mains, Distribution and Mains, 
Transmission. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 165 of 168



June 2014 
 

Point of Responsibility, Metered Service - The connection point at the outlet side of a water meter where a 
landowner's responsibility for all conditions, maintenance, repairs, use and replacement of water service facilities 
begins, and the District's responsibility ends.  

Potable Water - Water that is used for human consumption and regulated by the California Department of Public 
Health.  

Pressure Reducing Valve - A device used to reduce the pressure in a domestic water system when the water 
pressure exceeds desirable levels.  

Pump Station - A drinking water or recycled water facility where pumps are used to push water up to a higher 
elevation or different location.  

Reservoir - A water storage facility where water is stored to be used at a later time for peak demands or 
emergencies such as fire suppression.  Drinking water and recycled water systems will typically use concrete or 
steel reservoirs.  The State Water Project system considers lakes, such as Shasta Lake and Folsom Lake to be 
water storage reservoirs. 

Runoff - Water that travels downward over the earth's surface due to the force of gravity.  It includes water 
running in streams as well as over land.  

Sanitary Sewer System - Sewer collection system designed to carry sewage, consisting of domestic, 
commercial, and industrial wastewater. This type of system is not designed nor intended to carry water from 
rainfall, snowmelt, or groundwater sources.  See Combined Sewer System. 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow – Overflow from a sanitary sewer system caused when total wastewater flow exceeds 
the capacity of the system.  See Combined Sewer Overflow. 

Santa Ana River Interceptor (SARI) Line – A regional brine line designed to convey 30 million gallons per day 
of non-reclaimable wastewater from the upper Santa Ana River basin to the sewer treatment plant operated by 
Orange County Sanitation District. 

Secondary Treatment – Biological sewer treatment, particularly the activated-sludge process, where bacteria 
and other microorganisms consume dissolved nutrients in wastewater. 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) - A computerized system which provides the ability to 
remotely monitor and control water system facilities such as reservoirs, pumps and other elements of water 
delivery.  

Service Connection - The water piping system connecting a customer's system with a District water main 
beginning at the outlet side of the point of responsibility, including all plumbing and equipment located on a parcel 
required for the District's provision of water service to that parcel.  

Sludge – Untreated solid material created by the treatment of sewage. 

Smart Irrigation Controller - A device that automatically adjusts the time and frequency which water is applied 
to landscaping based on real-time weather such as rainfall, wind, temperature and humidity.  

Special District - A political subdivision of a state established to provide a public services, such as water supply 
or sanitation, within a specific geographic area.   

Surface Water - Water found in lakes, streams, rivers, oceans or reservoirs behind dams.  

Total Suspended Solids (TSS) – The amount of solids floating and in suspension in water or sewage. 

Transpiration - The process by which water vapor is released into the atmosphere by living plants.  

Trickling Filter – A biological secondary treatment process in which bacteria and other microorganisms, growing 
as slime on the surface of rocks or plastic media, consume nutrients in primary treated sewage as it trickles over 
them. 

Underground Service Alert (USA) - A free service that notifies utilities such as water, telephone, cable and 
sewer companies of pending excavations within the area (dial 8-1-1 at least 2 working days before you dig).  

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 166 of 168



June 2014 
 

Urban Runoff - Water from city streets and domestic properties that typically carries pollutants into the storm 
drains, rivers, lakes, and oceans. 

Valve - A device that regulates, directs or controls the flow of water by opening, closing or partially obstructing 
various passageways.  

Wastewater – Any water that enters the sanitary sewer. 

Water Banking - The practice of actively storing or exchanging in-lieu surface water supplies in available 
groundwater basin storage space for later extraction and use by the storing party or for sale or exchange to a 
third party.  Water may be banked as an independent operation or as part of a conjunctive use program.  

Water cycle - The continuous movement water from the earth's surface to the atmosphere and back again; see 
Hydrologic cycle.  

Water Pressure - Pressure created by the weight and elevation of water and/or generated by pumps that deliver 
water to the tap.  

Water Service Line - The pipeline that delivers potable water to a residence or business from the District's water 
system.  Typically the water service line is a 1” to 1½” diameter pipe for residential properties.  

Watershed - A region or land area that contributes to the drainage or catchment area above a specific point on 
a stream or river.  

Water Table - The upper surface of the zone of saturation of groundwater in an unconfined aquifer.  

Water Transfer - A transaction, in which a holder of a water right or entitlement voluntarily sells/exchanges to a 
willing buyer the right to use all or a portion of the water under that water right or entitlement.  

Water Well - A hole drilled into the ground to tap an underground water aquifer.  

Wetlands - Lands which are fully saturated or under water at least part of the year, like seasonal vernal pools 
or swamps.  

Wet Weather Flow – Dry weather flow combined with stormwater introduced into a combined sewer system, 
and dry weather flow combined with infiltration/inflow into a separate sewer system. 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 167 of 168



June 2014 
 

 
  

COMMONLY USED ABBREVIATIONS 
 

AQMD Air Quality Management District 

BOD Biochemical Oxygen Demand 

CARB California Air Resources Board 

CCTV Closed Circuit Television 

CWA Clean Water Act 

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FOG Fats, Oils, and Grease 

GPD Gallons per day 

MGD Million gallons per day 

O & M Operations and Maintenance 

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration  

POTW Publicly Owned Treatment Works 

PPM Parts per million 

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board  

SARI Santa Ana River Inceptor 

SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority 

SBVMWD San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District 

SCADA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system 

SSMP Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 

SSO Sanitary Sewer Overflow 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  

TDS Total Dissolved Solids 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

TSS Total Suspended Solids 

WDR Waste Discharge Requirements 

YVWD Yucaipa Valley Water District 

Yucaipa Valley Water District - Board Workshop - November 10, 2015 - Page 168 of 168




